
VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

Phone: 585-586-4332   •   Fax: 585-586-4597   •   E-Mail: villageofpittsford.com 
www.villageofpittsford.com   •   21 North Main Street   •   Pittsford, New York 14534 

 

Members: 
Justin Vlietstra, Chair 
Joanne Shannon 
Susan Lhota 
David Marshall 
John Kitchura 

Attorney: Mindy Zoghlin 
Liaison: Dan Keating 
Rec. Sec: Marina Pacheco-Walker 

 

 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS SPECIAL MEETING 
Monday, August 16, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

 
*Workshop Meeting Cancelled* 

 
Tentative Agenda 

This agenda is subject to change both in number of applications, order of applications, and/or at 
the discretion of the Chairperson 

 
1. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
 

ZONING BOARD 
1. Minutes: 6/21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.villageofpittsford.com/


VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

Phone: 585-586-4332   •   Fax: 585-586-4597   •   E-Mail: villageofpittsford.com 
www.villageofpittsford.com   •   21 North Main Street   •   Pittsford, New York 14534 

MEETING NOTICE 
 

The Village of Pittsford Planning & Zoning Board of Appeals will hold a regular 
meeting on Monday, August 16, 2021 at 6:30 PM. Residents are invited to attend 
the meeting virtually or in-person at Village Hall, 21 N. Main Street, Pittsford, NY 
14534. Pursuant to the recommendation of the Centers for Disease Control and due 
to public health and safety concerns related to COVID-19, we ask that all residents, 
both vaccinated and unvaccinated, please wear a mask while in Village Hall. 
 
Topic: Planning & Zoning Board - Regular Meeting 

Time: Jul 19, 2021 06:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/98524612900?pwd=T3Ewd3NEOHkrUHErdHlTNzBTNjBHdz09  

 

Meeting ID: 985 2461 2900 

Passcode: 384081 

One tap mobile 

+19292056099,,98524612900#,,,,*384081# US (New York) 

+13017158592,,98524612900#,,,,*384081# US (Washington DC) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

Meeting ID: 985 2461 2900 

Passcode: 384081 

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/ab4VB9b72Q  

 

http://www.villageofpittsford.com/
https://zoom.us/j/98524612900?pwd=T3Ewd3NEOHkrUHErdHlTNzBTNjBHdz09
https://zoom.us/u/ab4VB9b72Q


VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

 

PRESENT: 
 Chairperson:  Justin Vlietstra 
 Members:  Jo Anne Shannon 
    David Marshall 
    Susan Lhota 
    John Kitchura 
 
 Attorney:  Mindy Zoghlin 
 Rec. Sec.:  Marina Pacheco 
 

Motion by Chairperson Vlietstra, and seconded by Member Shannon, to call the regular 
meeting to order at 6:29 PM, noting that all five members of the PZBA are present.  
Vote: Vlietstra – yes; Shannon – yes; Lhota – yes; Marshall – yes; Kitchura - yes. Motion 
carried. 
 

Chairperson Vlietstra stated that pursuant to Governor Cuomo’s recent Executive Orders, this 
meeting is being conducted online in response to the state’s response to COVID-19. We are 
video conferencing instead of meeting in person. Meeting notice is posted on the Village 
website, which includes a link to this meeting, so any member of the public can participate in 
this meeting and observe the discussions. 
 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure: None of the Board Members had conflicts of interest to 
disclose. 
 
DISCUSSION: ZOOM MEETING FORMAT 
 
Member Marshall shared some thoughts and comments about the Zoom formats; meeting format 
versus Webinar/Conference format. A key difference is whether meeting attendees can see the 
list of other attendees.  The Open Meetings Law does not require municipalities to keep an 
attendee list or to allow attendees to view it. 
 
Board members agree that they prefer the Zoom meeting format over the Zoom 
Webinar/Conference format so that the list of attendees is visible to all participants. 
 
MEETING MINUTES 
 
The Recording Secretary provided minutes from the May 24, 2021 Regular Meeting for Board 
approval. Board members indicated that they reviewed the minutes and had no changes. 
 



VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

Attorney Zoghlin noted that the Resolution was missing from the minutes, the Recording 
Secretary explained that they will be attached when put online and will be attached going 
forward. 
 
Board members requested the resolution be added to the minutes. 
 
Motion by Chairperson Vlietstra, and seconded by Member Shannon, to approve the regular 
meeting minutes of May 24, 2021 as revised. 
Vote: Vlietstra – yes; Shannon – yes; Lhota – yes; Marshall – yes; Kitchura - yes. Motion 
carried. 
 
BOARD UPDATES 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra updated members of the Board regarding the State Street bridge 
construction. The Planning Board discussed the Erie Canal bridges when the Active 
Transporation Plan (ATP) was under review.  Pedestrian accommodations on bridges is critical 
to a functional transportation system.  The State St. bridge reconstruction is nearing completion; 
the sidewalks will be 6.5ft wide which may be slightly narrower than before but they are 
supposed to add 5ft wide bike lanes in each direction.  The Bridge previously had a wide 
sidewalk but no bike lanes.  It was suggested during the ATP review that all bridges should 
ideally have 8ft wide sidewalks but no one anticipated having room for both sidewalks and bike 
lanes on this bridge.  Narrowing the vehicle drive lane width allows for bike lanes.  Board 
members indicated support for the proposed layout, bike lanes are a valuable addition. 
 
DISCUSSION: TEMPORARY ZONING ISSUES 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra stated that he had a discussion with Mayor Plummer recently regarding 
another round of code updates including changes to the temporary use permit.  
 
Mayor Plummer is interested in knowing what the “top 5” code issues are so that they can be 
addressed in the near term. Chairperson Vlietstra stated he believes temporary use permits and 
sign code are issues that should be addressed. 
 
Member Lhota asked if expansion of the tavern overlay could be included. Chairperson Vlietstra 
thought it reasonable to discuss the overlay district boundaries as well as review what requires a 
special use permit.  He explained that there was a significant expansion of the number of uses 
that require a special use permit in the zoning code adopted in 2019.  Revisiting that makes 
sense, for example do hair salons need a special use permit – they don’t impact neighboring 
properties. 
 



VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

Member Marshall added that special use permits can be an obstruction for those coming in with 
business proposals. He would like to see more uses allowed by right. He is concerned about the 
periphery of zoning districts and the “bleeding” effect on adjacent zones like residential areas. 
 
Attorney Zoghlin stated that zoning code, not special use permits, specify locations for each 
business type.  A special use permit is appropriate where you have a permitted use that has 
unique operational features that are potentially problematic and additional controls of aspects of 
that use are desired by the municipality.  For example: bars, recreational facilities, uses that 
attract large gatherings of people in a burst of time.  You may want to control hours of operation 
or noise in those instances. 
 
Member Marshall asked Attorney Zoghlin how transitions between the zones is supposed to 
happen. Attorney Zoghlin explained that some municipalities have transitional zones with 
increasingly restrictive requirements. That prevents a residential zone from abutting a dense 
commercial zone.  She further explained that special use permits should regulate operational 
issues not uses.  The comprehensive plan should provide a vision for land use regulations. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra stated there has been much discussion by Trustees in the past over limiting 
the quantity of any given type of businesses in an area.  Zoning and special use permits are not 
intended to regulate quantities.  The free market does an effective job of preventing an excessive 
quantity of a given business type.  The concern about an overabundance of taverns may lead to 
reluctance by the Trustees to expand the tavern overlay district.  The district as it stands 
represents where taverns have traditionally been located. 
 
Member Kitchura asked if special use permits had previously been used to allow for expansion 
outside of a zone. Chairperson Vlietstra explained that is not the case. The zoning code specifies 
where uses are allowed, and which ones require a special use permit.  The tavern overlay district 
is a parcel-by-parcel map identifying exactly where taverns can be located.  There is a larger area 
where restaurants are permitted.  Both can serve alcohol, but restaurants get the majority of 
revenue from food and taverns get the majority of revenue from alcohol sales.  He further 
explained that special use permits let you set conditions of approval to regulate “soft matters” 
such as hours of operation as Mindy previously stated. There has been long debate over 
regulation of restaurants, bars, and parking in the Village. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra provided some examples of businesses/situations where a special use 
permit has historically been used in the Village (i.e. restaurant/bars, churches, funeral homes, 
yoga studios and classes, etc.).  The 2019 code updates greatly expanded the scope of the special 
use permit, so now hair salons, buildings over 2000sqft, and other types of businesses need 
special use permits. 
 
Member Marshall asked if the Trustees intended to have one general update that applies to all of 
the code or if updates would be for specific elements of the code. He also asked what the time 



VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

period and scope to which the Trustees are looking for input. Chairperson Vlietstra stated that the 
Mayor was interested in making a round of updates in the near future, unsure when, but that 
there will be a push to address the urgent easier issues and then have a subsequent follow-up 
code discussion for issues that may take more time to solve. 
 
Member Marshall asked if Chairperson Vlietstra knew what those urgent updates were and if 
Board members should plan to provide comment within a month or two. Chairperson Vlietstra 
answered that he does not have that information. He welcomed members of the Board to conduct 
their own review of Code and determine what latent issues they believe should be addressed. 
 
Member Marshall stated that he would appreciate time to review and coordinate comment to 
provide to the Trustees. 
 
Member Kitchura asked if there will be a first round of code-update to fix non-controversial 
issues and then a second round to address issues that need more discussion and consideration. 
Chairperson Vlietstra confirmed that is his understanding, but that was only discussed in his 
conversations with the Mayor, he is unsure where other Trustees are with the matter. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra asked Trustee Leitgeb if he was aware of any planned code updates. 
Trustee Leitgeb answered that he has not discussed code updates with the Mayor yet but it is his 
understanding that changes are made in batches and that information is being gathered to submit 
the next batch. Trustee Leitgeb stated that he is in favor of receiving comments from the PZBA 
related to the changes. Trustee Leitgeb provided examples of a food truck application and short-
term businesses that have been discussed by the Trustees and that he would like PZBA input on 
those issues. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra opened the floor to comments by Board members. Member Lhota stated 
that she would like time to compile her thoughts on the matter. She would like to approach the 
updates in an organized way. Code topics should be an agenda item that Board members can 
contemplate in advance.  Member Marshall added that he would like to have public input on the 
topics as well. 
 
Member Marshall asked that for “applications of size” for apartments/condos if there was any 
opportunity to create affordable housing as a part of the context of the code update discussion 
and if the PZBA could provide input on that matter. Chairperson Vlietstra answered that a vision 
for housing is part of the Village comprehensive plan which does call for an expansion of multi-
family housing. The comprehensive plan supports 2nd and 3rd floor housing over businesses at 
Schoen Place and the central business district. The comprehensive plan identified locations for 
mixed-use development with commercial on the first floor and residential on upper floors.  He 
was unsure if affordable housing was a specific directive in the comprehensive plan. 
 



VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

Member Lhota stated that the comprehensive plan discusses increasing the diversity of housing 
options, but low-income housing was not directly mentioned. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra stated that there are opportunities to expand housing in the Village, but 
whether it is built is up to the property owners. 
 
Regarding food trucks, Chairperson Vlietstra stated that he has worked with food truck vendors 
in the past and the biggest thing that food truck vendors want is a predictable place where they 
can do business. These vendors would prefer to not have to compete for spots. Chairperson 
Vlietstra suggested creating an expedient process which outlines where they may operate, what 
they must do to obtain proper permitting, only give out enough permits to fulfil the available 
designated spaces, and make permitting quick and easy with reasonable cost. 
 
Member Kitchura suggested identifying a few issues with the code and putting them on the next 
agenda for discussion. Chairperson Vlietstra agreed.  He encouraged members to do their own 
research and inform the secretary of any code related topics they would like to discuss in 
subsequent meetings. 
 
Member Marshall stated that in regards to agenda items versus member items, it would be 
helpful to the Board if members stated their member items in advance so that it is known. 
Chairperson Vlietstra stated a general policy of putting anything of general interest on the agenda 
ahead of time is useful. 
 
Member Marshall suggested adding an open public discussion/comment period to the agenda. 
Chairperson Vlietstra stated that he had no concerns about it and stated that previously at in-
person meetings attendees are free to raise their hands and ask questions. 
 
Attorney Zoghlin explained that the PZBA’s function is to evaluate applications and referrals as 
they are submitted and to not be bogged down by matters of general policy. She further 
explained that the PZBA should not solicit input, that is a function of the Trustees, the function 
of the PZBA is to review applications. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra stated that planning falls within the Board’s purview and that the Board 
may present their planning ideas to the Trustees being mindful that the Trustees do not have to 
act upon them.  The Planning Board is limited by time and budgetary constraints on planning 
initiatives that can be investigated.  The Trustees usually initiate research and planning for topics 
that are important to them and allocate funding for it. 
 
Attorney Zoghlin explained its appropriate to identify code related challenges this Board 
encounters when reviewing applications but its best to leave broader policy to the Trustees. 
 
DISCUSSION: TEMPORARY USE PERMITS 



VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

 
Chairperson Vlietstra shared a document referencing areas of the code regulating temporary use 
permits. The zoning map shows the boundaries and zoning districts in the Village, a property 
owner would refer to the map as a first step to determine what zoning district they are in. A 
property owner can then review the regulations for that zoning district outlined in §210-20.4, 
§210-21.4, §210-22.4, and §210-23. 210-21.4 specifies temporary use permits are required for 
“outdoor assembly sales, display, or storage areas” and specified which zoning districts are 
eligible for them.  Specific regulations for temporary use permits are outlined in §210-24.10. 
§210.39 outlines application requirements and review procedures for temporary use permits. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra stated that the most important change that he would like to see in the code 
is a list stating what requires a temporary use permit. The use tables in each zoning district can 
be updated to specify exactly what requires a special use permit. 
 
Member Lhota asked if the PZBA has the authority to make decisions on what needs a temporary 
use permit. Chairperson Vlietstra answered that such decisions would be made by the Trustees.   
 
Chairperson Vlietstra noted that a particular issue with the code that needs correction is the 
requirement that outdoor assembly and seating must be held within 20 ft. of the principal 
structure. 
 
Attorney Zoghlin stated that another issue that the PZBA could bring before the Trustees is the 
time periods for which temporary use permits are applicable. If applicants can get one for 9 
months and continually renew it, then it isn’t temporary which makes it a use variance that 
bypasses the evaluation criteria required for use variances. Identifying permitted accessory uses 
within a district may help.  Likewise, uses eligible for temporary permits can be identified with 
appropriate regulations.  For example, outdoor sales, display, and seating can be regulated as an 
accessory use. 
 
Member Vlietstra stated that most temporary activities are short duration like 1-day fundraisers 
and those could be listed as permissible accessory uses as Mindy suggests.  Longer durations 
events, like farmers markets, could be handled by just stating they are a permitted use and 
specifying appropriate regulations for them. 
 
Member Kitchura asked if authority over events such as the Farmers’ Market fell with the 
Trustees. Chairperson Vlietstra answered that the 2019 code update prohibits temporary use 
permits in residential districts.  The Farmers market is proposed to be held at the community 
center which is in a residential district.  The Trustees previously only reviewed temporary 
activities on Village property, but they are now reviewing any short-term retail activities on 
residential property too. Member Kitchura asked if it is worth considering these matters if the 
Trustees are reviewing it.  Trustee Leitgeb answered that the intention of the code was not to 
give Trustees discretion over all events.  Because the new code did not allow the PZBA to 



VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 
 

review them, the short-term retail code was written to address that issue. Transferring reviews 
from the ZBA to the Trustees was an oversight. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra noted that regarding outside sales and display, the Village has traditionally 
barred outside sales and storage. 
 
Chairperson Vlietstra asked Trustee Leitgeb if he was aware of any upcoming code work to be 
done by the Trustees. Trustee Leitgeb responded that he knew of none. 
 
Member Marshall mentioned the current temporary banner code which allows the Building 
Inspector to approve banners within the central business district based upon events held in the 
Village. The Building Inspector recently approved banners for the Monroe Golf Club 
Invitational, and the event is outside of the Village. Chairperson Vlietstra responded that 
temporary signs are a big issue and that code needs updates. 
 
Motion by Member Marshall, and seconded by Chairperson Vlietstra, to adjourn the 
meeting. 
Vote: Vlietstra – yes; Shannon – yes; Lhota – yes; Marshall – yes; Kitchura - yes. Motion 
carried. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marina Pacheco-Walker, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 


	PZBA 8.16.21 Agenda.pdf
	PZBA 6.21.21 Minutes.pdf

